

Title: **RETURN BIDS TO:** Sequencing Services Agriculture and Agri-Food Canada Address: See Part 2 – Bidder Instructions Attention: Solicitation Number Date of solicitation: 01R11-24-C070 2023-12-06 Email: Solicitation Closes: Time Zone: At: 11:00 am CST On: 2024-01-08 **REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL** Address Enquiries to: Proposal To: Agriculture and Agri-Food Canada Western Service Centre Procurement We hereby offer to sell to His Majesty the King in right of Canada, aafc.wscprocurement-csoapprovisionnement.aac@agr.gc.ca in accordance with the terms and conditions set out herein, referred to herein or attached hereto, the goods and service, and Zack Flamont, Procurement Officer construction as listed herein and on any attached sheets at the price(s) set out therefore. Name: Zack Flamont Comments: Email: zack.flamont@agr.gc.ca Telephone Number: FAX Number: 639-560-3462 Destination of Goods. Services and Construction: Morden Research and Development Centre 101 Route 100, Unit 100 Morden, Manitoba Canada Vendor/Firm Name and Address: Instructions: Municipal taxes are not applicable. Unless otherwise specified herein all prices quoted must include all applicable Canadian customs duties, GST/HST, excise taxes and are to be delivered Delivery Duty Paid including all delivery charges to destination(s) as indicated. The amount of the Goods and Services Tax/Harmonized Sales Tax is to be shown as a separate item. Delivery offered: Delivery required: 2024-03-31 Vendor/Firm Name and Address: Issuing Office Agriculture and Agri-Food Canada Western Service Centre 300 - 2010 12th Avenue Regina, Saskatchewan S4P 0M3 Name and title of person authorized to sign on behalf of vendor/firm (type or print) Signature

Canada

Date

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	- GENERAL INFORMATION	
1.1	INTRODUCTION	3
1.2	SUMMARY	3
1.3	DEBRIEFINGS	4
PART 2	- BIDDER INSTRUCTIONS	4
2.1	STANDARD INSTRUCTIONS, CLAUSES AND CONDITIONS	Л
2.2	SUBMISSION OF BIDS	
2.3	FORMER PUBLIC SERVANT	
2.4	ENQUIRIES - BID SOLICITATION	7
2.5	APPLICABLE LAWS	
2.6	IMPROVEMENT OF REQUIREMENT DURING SOLICITATION PERIOD	
2.7 2.8	BASIS FOR CANADA'S OWNERSHIP OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY BID CHALLENGE AND RECOURSE MECHANISMS	
PART 3	- BID PREPARATION INSTRUCTIONS	8
3.1	BID PREPARATION INSTRUCTIONS	8
PART 4	- EVALUATION PROCEDURES AND BASIS OF SELECTION	9
4.1	EVALUATION PROCEDURES	
4.2	BASIS OF SELECTION	9
PART 5	- CERTIFICATIONS AND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION	9
5.1	CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED WITH THE BID	
5.2	CERTIFICATIONS PRECEDENT TO CONTRACT AWARD AND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION	10
PART 6	- SECURITY, FINANCIAL AND OTHER REQUIREMENTS	10
		10
PART 6 6.1	- SECURITY, FINANCIAL AND OTHER REQUIREMENTS	10
PART 6 6.1	SECURITY, FINANCIAL AND OTHER REQUIREMENTS	10 10 10
PART 6 6.1 PART 7	S - SECURITY, FINANCIAL AND OTHER REQUIREMENTS SECURITY REQUIREMENTS C - RESULTING CONTRACT CLAUSES	10 10 10 10
PART 6 6.1 PART 7 7.1 7.2 7.3	SECURITY, FINANCIAL AND OTHER REQUIREMENTS SECURITY REQUIREMENTS SECURITY REQUIREMENTS STATEMENT OF WORK STANDARD CLAUSES AND CONDITIONS SECURITY REQUIREMENTS	
PART 6 6.1 PART 7 7.1 7.2 7.3 7.4	SECURITY, FINANCIAL AND OTHER REQUIREMENTS SECURITY REQUIREMENTS RESULTING CONTRACT CLAUSES STATEMENT OF WORK STANDARD CLAUSES AND CONDITIONS SECURITY REQUIREMENTS TERM OF CONTRACT	
PART 6 6.1 PART 7 7.1 7.2 7.3 7.4 7.5	SECURITY, FINANCIAL AND OTHER REQUIREMENTS SECURITY REQUIREMENTS RESULTING CONTRACT CLAUSES STATEMENT OF WORK STANDARD CLAUSES AND CONDITIONS SECURITY REQUIREMENTS TERM OF CONTRACT AUTHORITIES	10 10 10 10 10 11 11 11 11
PART 6 6.1 PART 7 7.1 7.2 7.3 7.4 7.5 7.6	SECURITY, FINANCIAL AND OTHER REQUIREMENTS SECURITY REQUIREMENTS SECURITY REQUIREMENTS STATEMENT OF WORK STANDARD CLAUSES AND CONDITIONS SECURITY REQUIREMENTS SECURITY REQUIREMENTS TERM OF CONTRACT AUTHORITIES PROACTIVE DISCLOSURE OF CONTRACTS WITH FORMER PUBLIC SERVANTS	
PART 6 6.1 PART 7 7.1 7.2 7.3 7.4 7.5 7.6 7.7	SECURITY, FINANCIAL AND OTHER REQUIREMENTS SECURITY REQUIREMENTS RESULTING CONTRACT CLAUSES STATEMENT OF WORK STANDARD CLAUSES AND CONDITIONS SECURITY REQUIREMENTS TERM OF CONTRACT AUTHORITIES PROACTIVE DISCLOSURE OF CONTRACTS WITH FORMER PUBLIC SERVANTS PAYMENT	10 10 10 10 10 11 11 11 11 11 11 12 12
PART 6 6.1 PART 7 7.1 7.2 7.3 7.4 7.5 7.6	SECURITY, FINANCIAL AND OTHER REQUIREMENTS SECURITY REQUIREMENTS SECURITY REQUIREMENTS STATEMENT OF WORK STANDARD CLAUSES AND CONDITIONS SECURITY REQUIREMENTS SECURITY REQUIREMENTS TERM OF CONTRACT AUTHORITIES PROACTIVE DISCLOSURE OF CONTRACTS WITH FORMER PUBLIC SERVANTS	10 10 10 10 10 11 11 11 11 11 12 12 12 13
PART 6 6.1 PART 7 7.1 7.2 7.3 7.4 7.5 7.6 7.7 7.8 7.9 7.10	SECURITY, FINANCIAL AND OTHER REQUIREMENTS SECURITY REQUIREMENTS - RESULTING CONTRACT CLAUSES STATEMENT OF WORK STANDARD CLAUSES AND CONDITIONS SECURITY REQUIREMENTS TERM OF CONTRACT AUTHORITIES PROACTIVE DISCLOSURE OF CONTRACTS WITH FORMER PUBLIC SERVANTS PAYMENT INVOICING INSTRUCTIONS	10 10 10 10 11 11 11 11 11 12 12 12 13 13
PART 6 6.1 PART 7 7.1 7.2 7.3 7.4 7.5 7.6 7.7 7.8 7.9 7.10 7.11	SECURITY, FINANCIAL AND OTHER REQUIREMENTS	10 10 10 10 11 11 11 11 11 11 12 12 12 13 13 13 13
PART 6 6.1 PART 7 7.1 7.2 7.3 7.4 7.5 7.6 7.7 7.8 7.9 7.10 7.11 7.12	SECURITY, FINANCIAL AND OTHER REQUIREMENTS SECURITY REQUIREMENTS RESULTING CONTRACT CLAUSES STATEMENT OF WORK STANDARD CLAUSES AND CONDITIONS. SECURITY REQUIREMENTS TERM OF CONTRACT AUTHORITIES PROACTIVE DISCLOSURE OF CONTRACTS WITH FORMER PUBLIC SERVANTS PAYMENT INVOICING INSTRUCTIONS CERTIFICATIONS AND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION APPLICABLE LAWS PRIORITY OF DOCUMENTS INSURANCE	10 10 10 10 11 11 11 11 11 12 12 12 13 13 13 13 13
PART 6 6.1 PART 7 7.1 7.2 7.3 7.4 7.5 7.6 7.7 7.8 7.9 7.10 7.11 7.12 7.13	SECURITY, FINANCIAL AND OTHER REQUIREMENTS. SECURITY REQUIREMENTS SECURITY REQUIREMENTS TERSULTING CONTRACT CLAUSES STATEMENT OF WORK. STANDARD CLAUSES AND CONDITIONS. SECURITY REQUIREMENTS TERM OF CONTRACT AUTHORITIES PROACTIVE DISCLOSURE OF CONTRACTS WITH FORMER PUBLIC SERVANTS PAYMENT INVOICING INSTRUCTIONS CERTIFICATIONS AND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION. APPLICABLE LAWS. PRIORITY OF DOCUMENTS INSURANCE DISPUTE RESOLUTION.	10 10 10 10 11 11 11 11 11 11 12 12 12 12 13 13 13 13 13 13
PART 6 6.1 PART 7 7.1 7.2 7.3 7.4 7.5 7.6 7.7 7.8 7.9 7.10 7.11 7.12 7.13 ANNEX	SECURITY, FINANCIAL AND OTHER REQUIREMENTS SECURITY REQUIREMENTS RESULTING CONTRACT CLAUSES STATEMENT OF WORK STANDARD CLAUSES AND CONDITIONS SECURITY REQUIREMENTS TERM OF CONTRACT AUTHORITIES PROACTIVE DISCLOSURE OF CONTRACTS WITH FORMER PUBLIC SERVANTS PAYMENT INVOICING INSTRUCTIONS CERTIFICATIONS AND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION APPLICABLE LAWS PRIORITY OF DOCUMENTS INSURANCE DISPUTE RESOLUTION "A"	10 10 10 10 11 11 11 11 11 12 12 12 12 12 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13
PART 6 6.1 PART 7 7.1 7.2 7.3 7.4 7.5 7.6 7.7 7.8 7.9 7.10 7.11 7.12 7.13 ANNEX STAT	SECURITY, FINANCIAL AND OTHER REQUIREMENTS. SECURITY REQUIREMENTS RESULTING CONTRACT CLAUSES STATEMENT OF WORK. STANDARD CLAUSES AND CONDITIONS. SECURITY REQUIREMENTS TERM OF CONTRACT AUTHORITIES. PROACTIVE DISCLOSURE OF CONTRACTS WITH FORMER PUBLIC SERVANTS PAYMENT INVOICING INSTRUCTIONS CERTIFICATIONS AND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION. APPLICABLE LAWS. PRIORITY OF DOCUMENTS INSURANCE. DISPUTE RESOLUTION. #A" EMENT OF WORK	10 10 10 10 10 11 11 11 11 11
PART 6 6.1 PART 7 7.1 7.2 7.3 7.4 7.5 7.6 7.7 7.8 7.9 7.10 7.11 7.12 7.13 ANNEX STAT	SECURITY, FINANCIAL AND OTHER REQUIREMENTS SECURITY REQUIREMENTS RESULTING CONTRACT CLAUSES STATEMENT OF WORK STANDARD CLAUSES AND CONDITIONS SECURITY REQUIREMENTS TERM OF CONTRACT AUTHORITIES PROACTIVE DISCLOSURE OF CONTRACTS WITH FORMER PUBLIC SERVANTS PAYMENT INVOICING INSTRUCTIONS CERTIFICATIONS AND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION APPLICABLE LAWS PRIORITY OF DOCUMENTS INSURANCE DISPUTE RESOLUTION "A"	10 10 10 10 10 11 11 11 11 11

ANNEX "C" LIST OF NAMES FOR INTEGRITY VERIFICATION	18
ANNEX "D" TO PART 3 OF THE BID SOLICITATION	19
APPENDIX 1 TO PART 4 - MANDATORY TECHNICAL CRITERIA	20

PART 1 - GENERAL INFORMATION

1.1 Introduction

The bid solicitation is divided into seven parts plus attachments and annexes, as follows:

- Part 1 General Information: provides a general description of the requirement;
- Part 2 Bidder Instructions: provides the instructions, clauses and conditions applicable to the bid solicitation;
- Part 3 Bid Preparation Instructions: provides Bidders with instructions on how to prepare their bid;
- Part 4 Evaluation Procedures and Basis of Selection: indicates how the evaluation will be conducted, the evaluation criteria that must be addressed in the bid, and the basis of selection;
- Part 5 Certifications and Additional Information: includes the certifications and additional information to be provided;
- Part 6 Security, Financial and Other Requirements: includes specific requirements that must be addressed by Bidders; and
- Part 7 Resulting Contract Clauses: includes the clauses and conditions that will apply to any resulting contract.

The Annexes include the Statement of Work, the Basis of Payment, the Electronic Payment Instruments, and any other annexes.

1.2 Summary

1.2.1 The Morden Research and Development Centre, Cereal Pathology Laboratory is applying new molecular genetic technologies, including high throughput sequencing and building on previous research to build towards the development of wheat varieties with favourable traits including resistance to Fusarium head blight (FHB). A key component to achieving this goal is the identification of nucleotide sequence variants within individual T. aestivum lines demonstrating distinct levels of FHB resistance and susceptibility among other agronomic traits. Most of our research includes fungi and plant genomic and RNA analyses as an important part of understanding the roles of genes obtained in F. graminearum and challenged resistant and susceptible wheat tissues.

To meet our research goals we will need to perform a genomic and RNA-seq analysis. However, this technology is not currently available in our research facility, therefore, entering into a contract for these services will enable AAFC to continue meeting these goals. Further, as sequencing technology is continuously evolving, service providers with access to the most up-to-date equipment allows us to make use of the cutting edge technology available.

1.2.2 Canada Post Corporation's Connect service

This bid solicitation allows bidders to use the CPC Connect service provided by Canada Post Corporation to transmit their bid electronically. Bidders must refer to Part 2 entitled Bidder Instructions, and Part 3 entitled Bid Preparation Instructions, of the bid solicitation, for further information.

1.3 Debriefings

Bidders may request a debriefing on the results of the bid solicitation process. Bidders should make the request to the Contracting Authority within 15 working days from receipt of the results of the bid solicitation process. The debriefing may be in writing, by telephone or in person.

PART 2 - BIDDER INSTRUCTIONS

2.1 Standard Instructions, Clauses and Conditions

All instructions, clauses and conditions identified in the bid solicitation by number, date and title are set out in the <u>Standard Acquisition Clauses and Conditions Manual</u> (https://buyandsell.gc.ca/policy-and-guidelines/standard-acquisition-clauses-and-conditions-manual) issued by Public Works and Government Services Canada.

Bidders who submit a bid agree to be bound by the instructions, clauses and conditions of the bid solicitation and accept the clauses and conditions of the resulting contract.

The <u>2003</u> (2023-06-08) Standard Instructions - Goods or Services - Competitive Requirements, are incorporated by reference into and form part of the bid solicitation, and are amended as follows:

a) Section 05, Submission of Bids, subsection 5.2:

DELETE: (d) send its bid only to the specified Bid Receiving Unit of Public Works and Government Services Canada (PWGSC) specified in the bid solicitation or, to the address specified in the bid solicitation, as applicable;

INSERT: (d) send its bid only to the specified Bid Receiving Unit of Agriculture and Agri-Food Canada (AAFC) specified in the bid solicitation or, to the address specified in the bid solicitation, as applicable;

b) Section 05, Submission of Bids, subsection 5.4:

DELETE: 60 days

INSERT: 120 days

c) Section 06, Late Bids and Section 07, Delayed Bids:

DELETE: "PWGSC"

INSERT: "AAFC"

d) Section 08, Transmission by facsimile or by Canada Post Corporation's (CPC) Connect service

DELETE: Subsection 1 and 2 in its entirety.

INSERT:

08 (2022-03-29) Canada Post Corporation's (CPC) Connect service

- 1. Canada Post Corporation's Connect service
 - a. Unless specified otherwise in the bid solicitation, bids may be submitted by using the <u>Connect service</u> provided by Canada Post Corporation.

The only acceptable email address to use with CPC Connect for responses to bid solicitations issued by Agriculture and Agri-Food Canada is: <u>aafc.procbidreceiving-receptiondesoumissionaprov.aac@agr.gc.ca</u>

- b. To submit a bid using CPC Connect service, the Bidder must either:
 - i. send directly its bid only to the specified AAFC Bid Receiving Unit, using its own licensing agreement for CPC Connect provided by Canada Post Corporation; or
 - ii. send as early as possible, and in any case, at least six business days prior to the solicitation closing date and time, (in order to ensure a response), an email that includes the bid solicitation number to the specified AAFC Bid Receiving Unit requesting to open a CPC Connect conversation. Requests to open a CPC Connect conversation received after that time may not be answered.
- c. If the Bidder sends an email requesting CPC Connect service to the specified AAFC Bid Receiving Unit in the bid solicitation, an officer of the AAFC Bid Receiving Unit will then initiate a CPC Connect conversation. The CPC Connect conversation will create an email notification from Canada Post Corporation prompting the Bidder to access and action the message within the conversation. The Bidder will then be able to transmit its bid afterward at any time prior to the solicitation closing date and time.
- d. If the Bidder is using its own licensing agreement to send its bid, the Bidder must keep the CPC Connect conversation open until at least 30 business days after the solicitation closing date and time.
- e. The bid solicitation number should be identified in the CPC Connect message field of all electronic transfers.
- f. It should be noted that the use of CPC Connect service requires a Canadian mailing address. Should a bidder not have a Canadian mailing address, they may use the AAFC Bid Receiving Unit address specified in the solicitation in order to register for the CPC Connect service.
- g. For bids transmitted by CPC Connect service, Canada will not be responsible for any failure attributable to the transmission or receipt of the bid including, but not limited to, the following:
 - i. receipt of a garbled, corrupted or incomplete bid;
 - ii. availability or condition of the CPC Connect service;
 - iii. incompatibility between the sending and receiving equipment;
 - iv. delay in transmission or receipt of the bid;
 - v. failure of the Bidder to properly identify the bid;
 - vi. illegibility of the bid;
 - vii. security of bid data; or,
 - viii. inability to create an electronic conversation through the CPC Connect service.
- h. AAFC Bid Receiving Unit will send an acknowledgement of the receipt of bid document(s) via the CPC Connect conversation, regardless of whether the conversation was initiated by the supplier using its own license or AAFC Bid Receiving Unit. This acknowledgement will confirm only the receipt of bid document(s) and will not confirm if the attachments may be opened nor if the content is readable.
- i. Bidders must ensure that that they are using the correct email address for the AAFC Bid Receiving Unit when initiating a conversation in CPC Connect or communicating with the AAFC Bid Receiving Unit and should not rely on the accuracy of copying and pasting the email address into the CPC Connect system.
- j. A bid transmitted by CPC Connect service constitutes the formal bid of the Bidder and must be submitted in accordance with section 05.
- e) Section 20, Further Information:

DELETE: Subsection 20 in its entirety.

2.2 Submission of Bids

Bids must be submitted using Canada Post Corporation's (CPC) Connect service to the email address specified below by the date, time and place indicated in the bid solicitation:

aafc.procbidreceiving-receptiondesoumissionaprov.aac@agr.gc.ca

Note: Bids will not be accepted if emailed directly to this email address. This email address is to be used to open a CPC Connect conversation, as detailed in Section 2.1 of this solicitation, or to send bids through a CPC Connect message if the bidder is using its own licensing agreement for CPC Connect service.

Alternate arrangements for bid receipt can by made by contacting the Contracting Authority identified on page 1 of the bid solicitation.

2.3 Former Public Servant

For the purposes of this clause, "former public servant" is any former member of a department as defined in the Financial Administration Act, R.S., 1985, c. F-11, a former member of the Canadian Armed Forces or a former member of the Royal Canadian Mounted Police. A former public servant may be:

- a. an individual;
- b. an individual who has incorporated;
- c. a partnership made of former public servants; or
- d. a sole proprietorship or entity where the affected individual has a controlling or major interest in the entity.

"lump sum payment period" means the period measured in weeks of salary, for which payment has been made to facilitate the transition to retirement or to other employment as a result of the implementation of various programs to reduce the size of the Public Service. The lump sum payment period does not include the period of severance pay, which is measured in a like manner.

"pension" means a pension or annual allowance paid under the Public Service Superannuation Act (PSSA), R.S., 1985, c. P-36, and any increases paid pursuant to the Supplementary Retirement Benefits Act, R.S., 1985, c. S-24 as it affects the PSSA. It does not include pensions payable pursuant to the Canadian Forces Superannuation Act, R.S., 1985, c. C-17, the Defence Services Pension Continuation Act, 1970, c. D-3, the Royal Canadian Mounted Police Pension Continuation Act , 1970, c. R-10, and the Royal Canadian Mounted Police Superannuation Act, R.S., 1985, c. R-11, the Members of Parliament Retiring Allowances Act, R.S. 1985, c. M-5, and that portion of pension payable to the Canada Pension Plan Act, R.S., 1985, c. C-8.

Former Public Servant in Receipt of a Pension

As per the above definitions, is the Bidder a FPS in receipt of a pension? Yes () No ()

If so, the Bidder must provide the following information, for all FPSs in receipt of a pension, as applicable:

- a. name of former public servant;
- b. date of termination of employment or retirement from the Public Service.

By providing this information, Bidders agree that the successful Bidder's status, with respect to being a former public servant in receipt of a pension, will be reported on departmental websites as part of the published proactive disclosure reports in accordance with Contracting Policy Notice: 2019-01 and the Guidelines on the Proactive Disclosure of Contracts.

Work Force Adjustment Directive

Is the Bidder a FPS who received a lump sum payment pursuant to the terms of the Work Force Adjustment Directive? Yes () No ()

If so, the Bidder must provide the following information:

- a. name of former public servant;
- b. conditions of the lump sum payment incentive;
- c. date of termination of employment;
- d. amount of lump sum payment;
- e. rate of pay on which lump sum payment is based;
- f. period of lump sum payment including start date, end date and number of weeks;
- g. number and amount (professional fees) of other contracts subject to the restrictions of a work force adjustment program.

2.4 Enquiries - Bid Solicitation

All enquiries must be submitted in writing to the Contracting Authority **no later than five (5) calendar days** before the bid closing date. Enquiries received after that time may not be answered.

Bidders should reference as accurately as possible the numbered item of the bid solicitation to which the enquiry relates. Care should be taken by Bidders to explain each question in sufficient detail in order to enable Canada to provide an accurate answer. Technical enquiries that are of a proprietary nature must be clearly marked "proprietary" at each relevant item. Items identified as "proprietary" will be treated as such except where Canada determines that the enquiry is not of a proprietary nature. Canada may edit the question(s) or may request that the Bidder do so, so that the proprietary nature of the question(s) is eliminated and the enquiry can be answered to all Bidders. Enquiries not submitted in a form that can be distributed to all Bidders may not be answered by Canada.

2.5 Applicable Laws

Any resulting contract must be interpreted and governed, and the relations between the parties determined, by the laws in force in Manitoba.

Bidders may, at their discretion, substitute the applicable laws of a Canadian province or territory of their choice without affecting the validity of their bid, by deleting the name of the Canadian province or territory specified and inserting the name of the Canadian province or territory of their choice. If no change is made, it acknowledges that the applicable laws specified are acceptable to the Bidders.

2.6 Improvement of Requirement During Solicitation Period

Should bidders consider that the specifications or Statement of Work contained in the bid solicitation could be improved technically or technologically, bidders are invited to make suggestions, in writing, to the Contracting Authority named in the bid solicitation. Bidders must clearly outline the suggested improvement as well as the reason for the suggestion. Suggestions that do not restrict the level of competition nor favour a particular bidder will be given consideration provided they are submitted to the Contracting Authority at least five (5) days before the bid closing date. Canada will have the right to accept or reject any or all suggestions.

2.7 Basis for Canada's Ownership of Intellectual Property

Agriculture and Agri-Food Canada has determined that any intellectual property rights arising from the performance of the Work under the resulting contract will belong to Canada, for the following reasons, as set out in the Policy on Title to Intellectual Property Arising Under Crown Procurement Contracts:

- the Intellectual Property in Foreground Information consists of material subject to copyright, with the exception of computer software and all documentation pertaining to that software.

2.8 Bid Challenge and Recourse Mechanisms

- (a) Several mechanisms are available to potential suppliers to challenge aspects of the procurement process up to and including contract award.
- (b) Canada encourages suppliers to first bring their concerns to the attention of the Contracting Authority. Canada's <u>Buy and Sell</u> website, under the heading "<u>Bid Challenge and Recourse Mechanisms</u>" contains information on potential complaint bodies such as:
 - Office of the Procurement Ombudsman (OPO)
 - Canadian International Trade Tribunal (CITT)
- (c) Suppliers should note that there are **strict deadlines** for filing complaints, and the time periods vary depending on the complaint body in question. Suppliers should therefore act quickly when they want to challenge any aspect of the procurement process.

PART 3 - BID PREPARATION INSTRUCTIONS

3.1 Bid Preparation Instructions

If the Bidder chooses to submit its bid electronically, Canada requests that the Bidder submits its bid in accordance with section 08 of the 2003 standard instructions. The CPC Connect system has a limit of 1GB per single message posted and a limit of 20GB per conversation.

Canada requests that the Bidder submits its bid in separately bound sections as follows:

Section I: Technical Bid Section II: Financial Bid Section III: Certifications

Section I: Technical Bid

In their technical bid, Bidders should demonstrate their understanding of the requirements contained in the bid solicitation and explain how they will meet these requirements. Bidders should demonstrate their capability in a thorough, concise and clear manner for carrying out the work.

The technical bid should address clearly and in sufficient depth the points that are subject to the evaluation criteria against which the bid will be evaluated. Simply repeating the statement contained in the bid solicitation is not sufficient. In order to facilitate the evaluation of the bid, Canada requests that Bidders address and present topics in the order of the evaluation criteria under the same headings. To avoid duplication, Bidders may refer to different sections of their bids by identifying the specific paragraph and page number where the subject topic has already been addressed.

Section II: Financial Bid

3.1.1 Bidders must submit their financial bid in accordance with the Basis of Payment in Annex "B".

3.1.2 Electronic Payment of Invoices – Bid

If you are willing to accept payment of invoices by Electronic Payment Instruments, complete Annex "D" Electronic Payment Instruments, to identify which ones are accepted.

If Annex "D" Electronic Payment Instruments is not completed, it will be considered as if Electronic Payment Instruments are not being accepted for payment of invoices.

Acceptance of Electronic Payment Instruments will not be considered as an evaluation criterion.

3.1.3 Exchange Rate Fluctuation

C3011T (2013-11-06), Exchange Rate Fluctuation

3.1.4 SACC Manual Clauses

Section III: Certifications

Bidders must submit the certifications and additional information required under Part 5.

PART 4 - EVALUATION PROCEDURES AND BASIS OF SELECTION

4.1 Evaluation Procedures

- (a) Bids will be assessed in accordance with the entire requirement of the bid solicitation including the technical and financial evaluation criteria.
- (b) An evaluation team composed of representatives of Canada will evaluate the bids.

4.1.1 Technical Evaluation

4.1.1.1. Mandatory Technical Criteria Refer to Appendix 1 to Part 4

4.1.2 Financial Evaluation

4.1.2.1 Mandatory Financial Criteria

SACC Manual Clause A0220T (2014-06-26), Evaluation of Price-Bid

4.2 Basis of Selection

4.2.1 Mandatory Technical Criteria

SACC Manual Clause A0031T (2010-08-16), Basis of Selection – Mandatory Technical Criteria

PART 5 – CERTIFICATIONS AND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Bidders must provide the required certifications and additional information to be awarded a contract.

The certifications provided by Bidders to Canada are subject to verification by Canada at all times. Unless specified otherwise, Canada will declare a bid non-responsive, or will declare a contractor in default if any certification made by the Bidder is found to be untrue, whether made knowingly or unknowingly, during the bid evaluation period or during the contract period.

The Contracting Authority will have the right to ask for additional information to verify the Bidder's certifications. Failure to comply and to cooperate with any request or requirement imposed by the Contracting Authority will render the bid non-responsive or constitute a default under the Contract.

5.1 Certifications Required with the Bid

Bidders must submit the following duly completed certifications as part of their bid.

5.1.1 Integrity Provisions - Declaration of Convicted Offences

In accordance with the Integrity Provisions of the Standard Instructions, all bidders must provide with their bid, **if applicable**, the Integrity declaration form available on the <u>Forms for the Integrity Regime</u> website (http://www.tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca/ci-if/declaration-eng.html), to be given further consideration in the procurement process.

5.2 Certifications Precedent to Contract Award and Additional Information

The certifications and additional information listed below should be submitted with the bid but may be submitted afterwards. If any of these required certifications or additional information is not completed and submitted as requested, the Contracting Authority will inform the Bidder of a time frame within which to provide the information. Failure to provide the certifications or the additional information listed below within the time frame specified will render the bid non-responsive.

5.2.1 Integrity Provisions – Required Documentation

In accordance with the section titled Information to be provided when bidding, contracting or entering into a real property agreement of the <u>Ineligibility and Suspension Policy</u> (http://www.tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca/ci-if/politique-policy-eng.html), the Bidder must provide the required documentation, as applicable, to be given further consideration in the procurement process.

Refer to Annex "C"

5.2.2 Federal Contractors Program for Employment Equity - Bid Certification

By submitting a bid, the Bidder certifies that the Bidder, and any of the Bidder's members if the Bidder is a Joint Venture, is not named on the Federal Contractors Program (FCP) for employment equity "FCP Limited Eligibility to Bid" list available at the bottom of the page of the <u>Employment and Social</u> <u>Development Canada (ESDC) - Labour's</u> website.

Canada will have the right to declare a bid non-responsive if the Bidder, or any member of the Bidder if the Bidder is a Joint Venture, appears on the "FCP Limited Eligibility to Bid list at the time of contract award.

PART 6 - SECURITY, FINANCIAL AND OTHER REQUIREMENTS

6.1 Security Requirements

This section intentionally left blank

PART 7 - RESULTING CONTRACT CLAUSES

The following clauses and conditions apply to and form part of any contract resulting from the bid solicitation.

7.1 Statement of Work

The Contractor must perform the Work in accordance with the Statement of Work at Annex "A".

7.2 Standard Clauses and Conditions

All clauses and conditions identified in the Contract by number, date and title are set out in the <u>Standard</u> <u>Acquisition Clauses and Conditions Manual (https://buyandsell.gc.ca/policy-and-guidelines/standard-acquisition-clauses-and-conditions-manual) issued by Public Works and Government Services Canada.</u>

7.2.1 General Conditions

<u>2035 (</u>2022-12-01), General Conditions - Higher Complexity - Services, apply to and form part of the Contract.

7.3 Security Requirements

7.3.1 There is no security requirement applicable to the Contract.

7.4 Term of Contract

7.4.1 Period of the Contract

The period of the Contract is from Date of Contract to March 31, 2024 inclusive.

7.5 Authorities

7.5.1 Contracting Authority

The Contracting Authority for the Contract is:

Zack Flamont Procurement Officer Agriculture and Agri-Food Canada Western Service Centre 300 – 2010 12th Avenue Regina, SK S4P 0M3

Telephone: 639-560-3462 E-mail address: <u>zack.flamont@agr.gc.ca</u>

The Contracting Authority is responsible for the management of the Contract and any changes to the Contract must be authorized in writing by the Contracting Authority. The Contractor must not perform work in excess of or outside the scope of the Contract based on verbal or written requests or instructions from anybody other than the Contracting Authority.

7.5.2 Project Authority

Details will be provided in any resulting contract

The Project Authority for the Contract is:

Name:	
Title:	
Organization:	
Address:	
Telephone:	
-acsimile:	
E-mail address:	

The Project Authority is the representative of the department or agency for whom the Work is being carried out under the Contract and is responsible for all matters concerning the technical content of the Work under the Contract. Technical matters may be discussed with the Project Authority; however, the Project Authority has no authority to authorize changes to the scope of the Work. Changes to the scope of the Work can only be made through a contract amendment issued by the Contracting Authority.

7.5.3 Contractor's Representative (Please complete)

Name: Title:	
Address:	
Telephone:	
E-mail:	

7.6 Proactive Disclosure of Contracts with Former Public Servants

By providing information on its status, with respect to being a former public servant in receipt of a <u>Public</u> <u>Service Superannuation Act</u> (PSSA) pension, the Contractor has agreed that this information will be reported on departmental websites as part of the published proactive disclosure reports, in accordance with <u>Contracting Policy Notice: 2019-01</u> of the Treasury Board Secretariat of Canada.

7.7 Payment

7.7.1 Basis of Payment

In consideration of the Contractor satisfactorily completing all of its obligations under the Contract, the Contractor will be paid a firm unit prices, as specified in Annex A for a cost of \$ ______ (insert the amount at contract award). Customs duties are included and Applicable Taxes are extra.

Canada will not pay the Contractor for any design changes, modifications or interpretations of the Work, unless they have been approved, in writing, by the Contracting Authority before their incorporation into the Work.

7.7.2 Limitation of Expenditure

SACC Manual clause C6000C (2017-08-17) Limitation of Price

7.7.3 Terms of Payment

SACC Manual clause <u>H1001C</u> (2008-05-12) Multiple Payments

7.7.4 Electronic Payment of Invoices – Contract

To be updated at Contract award

The Contractor accepts to be paid using any of the following Electronic Payment Instrument(s):

- a. Visa Acquisition Card;
- b. MasterCard Acquisition Card;
- c. Direct Deposit (Domestic and International);
- d. Electronic Data Interchange (EDI);
- e. Wire Transfer (International Only);
- f. Large Value Transfer System (LVTS) (Over \$25M)

7.8 Invoicing Instructions

- 1. The Contractor must submit invoices in accordance with the section entitled "Invoice Submission" of the general conditions. Invoices cannot be submitted until all work identified in the invoice is completed.
- 2. Invoices must be distributed as follows:
 - a. The original and one (1) copy must be forwarded to AAFC Project Authority identified under the section entitled "Authorities" of the Contract.
 - b. One (1) copy must be forwarded to the Contracting Authority identified under the section entitled "Authorities" of the Contract.

7.9 Certifications and Additional Information

7.9.1 Compliance

Unless specified otherwise, the continuous compliance with the certifications provided by the Contractor in its bid or precedent to contract award, and the ongoing cooperation in providing additional information are conditions of the Contract and failure to comply will constitute the Contractor in default. Certifications are subject to verification by Canada during the entire period of the Contract.

7.10 Applicable Laws

The Contract must be interpreted and governed, and the relations between the parties determined, by the laws in force in Manitoba.

7.11 **Priority of Documents**

If there is a discrepancy between the wording of any documents that appear on the list, the wording of the document that first appears on the list has priority over the wording of any document that subsequently appears on the list.

- (a) the Articles of Agreement;
- (b) the general conditions 2035 (2022-12-01), Higher Complexity Services;
- (c) Annex A, Statement of Work;
- (d) Annex B, Basis of Payment;
- (e) the Contractor's bid dated _____, (*insert date of bid*).

7.12 Insurance

SACC Manual clause G1005C (2016-01-28) Insurance - No Specific Requirement

7.13 Dispute Resolution

- (a) The parties agree to maintain open and honest communication about the Work throughout and after the performance of the contract.
- (b) The parties agree to consult and co-operate with each other in the furtherance of the contract and promptly notify the other party or parties and attempt to resolve problems or differences that may arise.
- (c) If the parties cannot resolve a dispute through consultation and cooperation, the parties agree to consult a neutral third party offering alternative dispute resolution services to attempt to address the dispute.

(d) Options of alternative dispute resolution services can be found on Canada's Buy and Sell website under the heading "<u>Dispute Resolution</u>".

ANNEX "A"

STATEMENT OF WORK

<u>1. Title</u>

Sequencing Services

2. Background

The Morden Research and Development Centre, Cereal Pathology Laboratory is applying new molecular genetic technologies, including high throughput sequencing and building on previous research to build towards the development of wheat varieties with favourable traits including resistance to Fusarium head blight (FHB). A key component to achieving this goal is the identification of nucleotide sequence variants within individual *T. aestivum* lines demonstrating distinct levels of FHB resistance and susceptibility among other agronomic traits. Most of our research includes fungi and plant genomic and RNA analyses as an important part of understanding the roles of genes obtained in *F. graminearum* and challenged resistant and susceptible wheat tissues.

To meet our research goals we will need to perform a genomic and RNA-seq analysis. However, this technology is not currently available in our research facility, therefore, entering into a contract for these services will enable AAFC to continue meeting these goals. Further, as sequencing technology is continuously evolving, service providers with access to the most up-to-date equipment allows us to make use of the cutting edge technology available.

3. Objective

AAFC requires the services of a Contractor to provide Sequencing Services on *T. aestivum* and *F. graminearum* samples.

4. Scope of Work

The contractor is required to conduct sequencing of plant and fungal samples as follows:

1. Next Generation Sequencing Part 1

1500 nanograms of DNA from 100 Triticum aestivum samples will be provided to acquire the following:

- a) gDNA QC
- b) Shotgun PCRFree
- c) Illumina Library QC
- d) Illumina NovaSeq PE150 1200M reads (6X coverage)

2. Next Generation Sequencing Part 2

500 nanograms of RNA from 32 *F. graminearum* challenged *T. aestivum* and *in vitro* grown *F. graminearum* samples will be provided to acquire the following:

- a) Bioanalyzer for RNA samples
- b) NEB rRNA-depleted (plant) stranded library preparation or NEB mRNA stranded Library preparation (Fungi)
- c) Illumina Library QC
- d) NovaSeq6000 S4 PE100 Sequencing lane
- e) Illumina NovaSeq 6000 S4 flow cell separator (per lane)

5. Deliverables and Schedule

Sequencing data for each project will be delivered within eight (8) weeks of sample submission. Each project to be invoiced separately upon completion.

6. Language of Work

Deliverables to be provided in English.

<u>7. Resources and Level of Effort</u> Contractor resources include NovaSeq 6000, Bioanalyzer for RNA samples, NEB library preparation kits for completion of required sequencing services.

8. Location of Work and Travel

Work to be performed at Contractor Site.

9. Duration/Period of Contract

Work will commence from date of award to be completed including invoicing on or before March 31, 2024

ANNEX "B"

BASIS OF PAYMENT

1. General

All prices are firm, all-inclusive prices, Customs duties are included and Applicable Taxes are extra. *Applicable taxes will be shown separately on invoices*.

Canada will not reimburse separately any travel or living expenses associated with performing the Work.

2. Pricing Basis

ltem	Description	Unit of Issue (A)	Cost Per Sample (B)	Total Cost =(A x B)
1	Triticum aestivum			
	a) gDNA QC	100	\$	\$
	b) Shotgun PCRFree	100	\$	\$
	c) Illumina Library QC	100	\$	\$
	d) Illumina NovaSeq PE150 – 1200M reads (6X coverage)	Completed by Bidder	\$	\$
2	F. graminearum challenged T. aestivum and in vitro grown F. graminearum			
	a) Bioanalyzer for RNA samples	32	\$	\$
	b) NEB rRNA-depleted (plant) stranded library preparation or NEB mRNA stranded Library preparation (Fungi	32	\$	\$
	c) Illumina Library QC	32	\$	\$
	d) NovaSeq6000 S4 PE100 Sequencing lane	Completed by Bidder	\$	\$
	e) Illumina NovaSeq 6000 S4 flow cell separator (per lane)	Completed by Bidder	\$	\$
			Tota	al

ANNEX "C" LIST OF NAMES FOR INTEGRITY VERIFICATION

Requirements

Section 17 of the Ineligibility and Suspension Policy (the Policy) requires suppliers, regardless of their status under the Policy, to submit a list of names with their bid or offer. The required list differs depending on the bidder or offeror's organizational structure:

- Suppliers including those bidding as joint ventures, whether incorporated or not, must provide a complete list of the names of all current directors.
- Privately owned corporations must provide a list of the owners' names.
- Suppliers bidding as sole proprietors, including sole proprietors bidding as joint ventures, whether incorporated or not, must provide a complete list of the names of all owners.
- Suppliers that are a partnership do not need to provide a list of names.

Suppliers may use this form to provide the required list of names with their bid or offer submission. Failure to submit this information with a bid or offer, where required, will render a bid or offer non-responsive, or the supplier otherwise disgualified for award of a contract or real property agreement. Please refer to Information Bulletin: Required information to submit a bid or offer for additional details.

Supplier information

Supplier's Legal Name:

Organizational Structure:

() Corporate Entity

() Privately Owned Corporation

() Sole Proprietor

Supplier's Address:

Supplier's Procurement Business Number (optional):

Solicitation or transaction number:

Date of bid, offer submission or closing date of Invitation to Offer (yyyy-mm-dd):

List of names

Name	Title

Declaration

_____, (position)_____ I, (name)

, declare that the information of (supplier's name) provided in this Form is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate and complete. I am aware that failing to provide the list of names will render a bid or offer non-responsive, or I will be otherwise disqualified for award of a contract or real property agreement. I am aware that during the bid or offer evaluation stage, I must, within 10 working days, inform the Contracting Authority in writing of any changes affecting the list of names submitted. I am also aware that after contract award I must inform the Registrar of Ineligibility and Suspension within 10 working days of any changes to the list of names submitted.

Signature: _____ Date: _____

ANNEX "D" to PART 3 OF THE BID SOLICITATION

ELECTRONIC PAYMENT INSTRUMENTS

The Bidder accepts to be paid by any of the following Electronic Payment Instrument(s):

- () VISA Acquisition Card;
- () MasterCard Acquisition Card;
- () Direct Deposit (Domestic and International);
- () Electronic Data Interchange (EDI);
- () Wire Transfer (International Only);
- () Large Value Transfer System (LVTS) (Over \$25M)

APPENDIX 1 TO PART 4 - MANDATORY TECHNICAL CRITERIA

M1 TECHNOLOGY CERTIFICATION

The Bidding Company shall certify that they own the equipment types to conduct the sequencing.

To demonstrate this, the Bidder must complete and provide the certification below, by indicating the Model Number and Year of Equipment they own.

EQUIPMENT TYPE:	MODEL NUMBER	YEAR
Illumina NovaSeq 6000:		

I, the Bidder, submitting this Bid Submission, certify that I in fact have the above equipment to undertake the work for AAFC.

Printed Name

Signature

Date

M2 LABORATORY CERTIFICATION

The Bidding Company shall have a laboratory located in either Canada or the United States where AAFC can submit their honey bee samples to.

To demonstrate this, the Bidder must **provide the address of their laboratory** where AAFC can send their samples for sequencing analysis.

Laboratory Location: (Indicate Postal Address)

(Indicate City/Country)

Printed Name

Signature

Date

M3 EXPERIENCE

The Bidding Company shall have recent experience <u>within the past three (3) years</u> from date of posting of this solicitation with Research Projects conducting Whole Generation Sequencing (WGS) and RNA sequencing using Illumina NovaSeq instruments.

To demonstrate this, the Bidder must provide <u>one (1) project where they have used Illumina</u> <u>NovaSeq for Whole Generation Sequencing (WGS) and one (1) project where they have</u> <u>used NovaSeq for RNA Sequencing in the last three years (2 projects in total)</u>, which demonstrates their capability to prepare samples and show successful completion of sequencing analysis completed for clients.

* If greater than two projects are submitted; only the first two will be evaluated.

Project Descriptions for each project must include the following items to demonstrate experience:

- a. Project Title;
- b. Client Organization Name;
- c. Project Description (includes supporting data such as what and how);
- d. Project Duration (start and completion date) (mm/yyyy to mm/yyyy).